PROPERTY ADDRESS:

City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & [Landmarks 25 North Third Street

Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-411-032

HISTORIC NAME:

COMMON NAME: Ashland Center

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1953

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1970, 2019, 2021

ARCHITECT:

BUILDER:
WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Freestanding, International

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Complex, Multi-Tenant Commercial

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 2

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Poured Concrete

|z| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Brick

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Commercial Entry

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Commercial Entry (Not Original)

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Aluminum Clad

|E| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Fixed

|:| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Unknown

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action:




City of Geneva, lllinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

25 North Third Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The existing building consists of a former grocery store, built in 1954,
and an adjacent one-story commercial building. The two structures
were combined into a single commercial building 1967 for the First
National Bank. The one-story building at the south end (adjacent to
the alley) was originally a Studebaker Automobile agency until 1953.
It was then remodeled for Gibbs Shoe Store, which opened in 1954
and relocated to 21 Hamilton Street (Geneva Republican, September
24, 1952, and March 25, 1954). The store sold men's, women's, and
children's shoes.

On historic Sanborn Fire Insurance maps, the earliest building on the
site was a 1 1/2 store building on the alley, set far back from Third
Street, which is visible in the earliest map drawn in 1885. That
building's historic address was 506 1/2 Hamilton Street, and it was
set entirely on Lot 7 of Block 39. Its existence continued through
sometime between 1912 and 1923, when nothing existed on the site.
By 1930, a dairy with multiple cold storage areas existed on the site

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869
Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land
Records; Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, lllinois: 150
Reminders of 150 Years

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The existing building consists of a former grocery store, built in 1954, and an adjacent one-story commercial building. The two structures were combined into a single commercial building 1967 for the First National Bank. The one-story building at the south end (adjacent to the alley) was originally a Studebaker Automobile agency until 1953. It was then remodeled for Gibbs Shoe Store, which opened in 1954 and relocated to 21 Hamilton Street (Geneva Republican, September 24, 1952, and March 25, 1954). The store sold men's, women's, and children's shoes.

On historic Sanborn Fire Insurance maps, the earliest building on the site was a 1 1/2 store building on the alley, set far back from Third Street, which is visible in the earliest map drawn in 1885. That building's historic address was 506 1/2 Hamilton Street, and it was set entirely on Lot 7 of Block 39. Its existence continued through sometime between 1912 and 1923, when nothing existed on the site. By 1930, a dairy with multiple cold storage areas existed on the site at the address 17 N Third Street, continuing through the 1945 map. This 1945 depiction might not have been completely accurate. By 1940, a garage was advertised at the address, and by 1946, it was a full showroom.

In December 1953, a permit was issued to W.T. Valos to remove a section of the store at 17 N. Third Street (Geneva Republican, December 17, 1953). In February 1954, Valos approved erecting a new store at 19 N. Third Street (Geneva Republican, February 11, 1954). 

National Tea opened at this location on July 28, 1954. The building was described as a "work of beauty," constructed with stone and brick, featuring a large pylon that reached towards the sky. The building was illuminated at night with mercury vapor lamps, making it as bright as day (Geneva Republican, July 22, 1954). National Tea moved to a new location in early 1966 (GHM).

First National Bank remodeled the building in 1966 and opened at this site on May 15, 1967 (Geneva Republican, May 11, 1967). The house at the southwest corner of Third and Hamilton Streets was razed in late 1969 to make way for a new parking lot (GHM). Additionally, three new "tele-audio" drive-ups were added in 1969. These were designed by Walter E. Foss of Chicago, built by Driessen Construction Co., and became operational on April 18, 1970 (GHM, Geneva Republican, December 11, 1969). In August 1971, First National Bank received a permit for an addition (Geneva Republican, September 09, 1971). Firstar acquired the bank in June 1992 (Geneva Republican, June 04, 1992).
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